
 

 
 

Notice of meeting of  
 

Planning Committee 
 
To: Councillors R Watson (Chair), D'Agorne, Firth, Funnell, 

Horton, Hudson, Hyman, Jamieson-Ball, Moore, Morley, 
Pierce, Potter (Vice-Chair), Reid, Simpson-Laing, 
B Watson and Wiseman 
 

Date: Thursday, 17 December 2009 
 

Time: 4.30 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 

There are no site visits scheduled for this meeting 
 

Please note that at 3.15pm, prior to the meeting, there will be a 
presentation on the revised Terry’s scheme.  

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

1. Declarations of Interest   
 

At this point, members are asked to declare any personal or 
prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this agenda. 
 

2. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting of last meeting of 
the Planning Committee held on 29 October 2009. 
 

3. Public Participation   
 

It is at this point in the meeting that members of the public who 
have registered their wish to speak can do so. The deadline for 
registering is by 5.00pm on Wednesday 16 December 2009. 
Members of the public can speak on specific planning applications 
or on other agenda items or matters within the remit of the 
committee. 
  
To register please contact the Democracy Officer for the meeting, 
on the details at the foot of this agenda. 



 
4. Plans List   

 

This item invites Members to determine the following planning 
applications: 
 

a) Land to the West of Metcalfe Lane, Osbaldwick, York 
(09/01768/FULM)  (Pages 7 - 18) 
 

Change of use of agricultural land into nature conservation area 
with public access [Osbaldwick Ward]. 
 

b) MFI Furniture Centre Ltd, Foss Islands Road, York YO31 7UL 
(09/02071/LEGAL)  (Pages 19 - 28) 
 

Variation of legal agreement to allow food retail to be traded from 
the premises [Guildhall Ward]. 
 

5. Planning Performance Agreements - Charter  (Pages 29 - 40) 
 

Following public consultation, to consider the formal adoption of a 
Charter for use in the formulation and implementation of Planning 
Performance Agreements (PPA’s). 
 

6. Appeals Performance and Decisions Summary  (Pages 41 - 54) 
 

This report informs Members of the Council’s performance in 
relation to appeals determined by the Planning Inspectorate in the 
3 month period up to 31 October 2009 together with a summary of 
the salient points from those appeals. 
 

7. Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under 
the Local Government Act 1972.   
 

 
 
Democracy Officer: 
 
Name: Jill Pickering 
Contact Details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 552061 
• E-mail – jill.pickering@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 



 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

 
Contact details are set out above.  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (40 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Decision Session) agenda. The 
Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date and will 
set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 

necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



����������	
�����
��� ������������������

�������� �������������������

����� ��������� ��!!��

� �"���� ��#������ "� �$��"���%�&�� '(�)� �&(�
&� ���(�&#�"��(�&����(�*����"��+����(�
��� �(��� ���(���� ��(������ �%,���+
�&�� '(� ���(�"���"��+�����(���$��"��(�
$�"����(���$�����%"#��)� ���� �)#�����'�
��������� �%"#��)� ���� ��-��� ��'�

��������"� ��#������ "��-��� �������)#������

�
���� ����	
	��
���
������
�����

�
���.�	��/�	����0���1����1�
�2	��2���3���4���������3��������5�2���4�	���2��
�	�4	�6�1�
�2������	�����3�����53��320������3��.������������3��25��127�
�
����
����	�*2������+�2���1�
�2	�1�2�4�	���2��4	�6�1�
�2�� ����	���� �����2���
�����82�%�	�4���1�#��0�	������2�4��� ����5�.��/����)���1��2���2�1���/�
�2��(� �98� �	��
�  �21� 2�1� &����  �21(� ��	
'� 2�� 3�� 321� �4�
��� 2�� �3��
��2����5���:��	��	�52	1��5��3����������4�	��������2�1�3��������3��	����2�1�
���
����42	������3��1��
��������	�0����5��3�	���7���
��
����
����	����	
��1�
�2	�1�2�4�	���2�����+4	�6�1�
�2������	���������2��������
82�%�	�4���1�#��0�	������2�4�������5�.��/����)���1��2���2�1���/��2��(�
�98��	��
� �21�2�1�&���� �21(���	
'�2��2����.�	�����3��&�����5�����2���
���������� )�	��� 2�1� ��	��	� ���.�	� ��� ��2��� 2�1� ���1���� ��� �3��
#��0�	����7�
��
����
����	���	����1�
�2	�1�2�4�	���2�����+4	�6�1�
�2������	���������2��������
82�%�	�4���1�#��0�	������2�4�������5�.��/����)���1��2���2�1���/��2��(�
�98��	��
� �21�2�1�&���� �21(���	
'�2��2����.�	�����3��&�����5�����2���
����������)�	��7�
�

���� ���������
�
 �"��,��;���%�'������������ �32�� �3�� �������� ��� �3�� ������5� ��� �3��

���������� 3��1� ����<� *���� �!!�(� .�� 244	�0�1�
2�1���5��1�.���3���32�	�2��2�
�		�
��	�
�	17�

�
�����%��'� �32�� �3�� �������� ��� �3�� �2��� ������5� ��� �3��

���������� 3��1� ��� �8� "�4���.�	� �!!�(� .��
244	�0�1�2�1���5��1�.���3���32�	�2��2�
�		�
��
	�
�	1���.6�
������3�������/��5�2���1����;�

�
��� ������� =8� %��
�2	2������ ��� ����	���'� ��� �3��
1�
�2	2����� .�� ���	� )�	�3� �3�� 1�������� ��� �3��
/�	1�� >/��3� �3�� ����?� 2�1� �3��	� 	�4�2
������
/��3�>��������?7�

Agenda Item 2Page 3



���� ��������	
�����	��
���
�
��� /2�� 	�4�	��1� �32�� �3�	�� 321� .���� ��� 	�5���	2������ ��� �4�2
� 2�� �3��
������5���1�	��3������
��?����.��
��2	��
�42�����"
3���7�
�
�

���� ��	���������
�
���.�	�� 
����1�	�1� 2� 	�4�	�� ��� �3�� ������2��� ��	�
��	� %��2����5� 2�1�
"���2��2.��� ��0���4����'� 	��2���5� ��� �3�� �����/��5� 4�2����5� 244��
2����(�
��������5� �3�� 4	�4��2��� 2�1� 	���02��� 4�2����5� 
����1�	2������ 2�1� ������5�
�����3��0��/�����
����������2�1�����
�	�7��
�
�

���� ������������ ����!"���#�$��%�!&�������'�������������&�����(�	)*�
��$�+�
��������,$''�
���(�-��+�.�/0��12*0
���3��
�
�����1�	2����� /2�� 5�0��� ��� 2� �26�	� 	���	0�1� �2���	�� 244��
2����(�
��.�����1�.���3��#��0�	����������	
(���	��2�1�
24��5����@��.�	��/�&���(��3��
����	2���2
��2�1��2���	������1��5����&�����5�����2����2�4��7�
�
����
�	��
�	
��2��1��3�������/��5�	�0���1����1������%���	�4�2
�����1������=����
�3��	�4�	�'������
�	4�	2���	�0���1�4�2�����/�	�
��0�1;��
�
=7� �3�� 1�0���4����� 3�	�.�� 4�	�����1� �32��� .�� 
2		��1� ���� ����� ���

2

�	12�
��/��3��3��244	�0�1�4�2������.�	�1���==!<=A7�78!=B�(�
��==!<=A7�7�<=B)(� ��==!<=A7�7��!B)(� ��==!<=A7�7��=B�(�
��==!<=A7�7���B�(� ��==!<=A7�7��<B�(� ��==!<=A7�7��8B�(�
��==!<=A7�7��CB�(� ��==!<=A7�7��9B�(� ��==!<=A7�7��AB�(�
��==!<=A7�7��DB�(� ��==!<=A7�7���B�(� ��==!<=A7�7�<!B�(�
�==!<=A7�7�<�B�(� ��==!<=A7�7�<<(� ��==!<=A7�7�<C� 2�1�
�!==7�7=!9B���	�2���4�2����	�1��2������.��:�������25	��1����/	����5�
.���3����
2����2����5����3�	����2��2��2���1���������3��244	�0�1�
4�2��7��

�
 �2���;� )�	� �3�� 20��12�
�� ��� 1��.�� 2�1� ��� ����	�� �32�� �3��
1�0���4��������
2		��1����������2��244	�0�1�.���3����
2����2����5�
���3�	���7�
�

����
�	��2����	�4�	��1��32�� �3���321�321������
��
�	��� ���	��2����� ��� �3��
�2�����2�
�� 	�5����� ��� 	��2����� ��� �3�� �2�1�
24��5� .��� ��� /2�� 
����	��1�
�32�� �3�� #��0�	����� 321� ��/� 4	�0�1�1� 211�����2�� ����	�2����� /3�
3�
2���0�2��1� �3���� 
��
�	��7� ��� /2�� ��2��1� �32�� �3��� ����	�2����� /���1� .��
��
��1�1� ��� 2� 	�0���1� ��0�	������2�� ����� �2�25������ 4�2�� %�"��'(� 2��
	�:��	�1�.��1	2���
��1������������3��	�4�	�7���
�
 �4	�����2������ ��� ��44�	�� ��� �3�� 244��
2����� /�	�� 	�
��0�1� �	��� �3��
244��
2��?�� 25���7� "3�� 
����	��1� �32�� �3��� /2�� �3�� ���2�� 432��� ��� �3��
�2�1�
24��5� ��	� �3�� 
2�4��7� "3�� 	�4�	��1� �32�� �3�� 244��
2����� /2�� ���
�2�1�
24�� �3�� �2���	�� ��
����� ��� �3�� 
2�4��� /3�
3� ��
��1�1� /��1�2�1�
2	�2��2	���1�@��.�	��/�&����2�1�2162
��������3���98(�4�2����5�����3��	��1�
.�1�� 2�1� /���2�1� 2	�2�� 2�1� ��	� 2� 32�� ��21�/� .��/���� �3�� �2
�� 2�1�
��0�������4���7�"3��
����	��1��32���3��	�1���5����2��321�/�	
�1�
�������

Page 4



/��3� �3�� #��0�	����� ��� 
	�2��� 2� 	2�5�� ��� 32.��2��� 2�1� ��� 4	�1�
�� 2� ����
��0�	������
�������2�7��
�
���.�	��:��������1�1��2��������3���2	�3���0�����5�/�	
��2�1��3��	�����
�����
�3�� �2�1�
24��5� 4	�4��2��� 2�1� �E4	����1� 
��
�	�� �32�� �����
����� 1��2����
321�����������.���� 	�
��0�1� ����3�/� �32����	�2
��/2��	�/���1�.��4	�4�	���
2�����2��17� ��� 2��/�	� ������.�	�� :�������������
�	�� 
����	��1� �32�� �3��
�	20�����2����	��3��
2�4���321���/�.����	�
��0�1�2�1��32��2�������5�321�
.����2		2�5�1�/��3��3��#��0�	��������1��
��������
������7�
�
�3��244��
2��?��25����
����	��1��32��1��2��������3�����4�	2	����	�2
��/2��	�
1	2��25��2		2�5�������321�	�
������.������.�����1�����3�����3�	���7�"3��
��2��1��32���	2��25������
�	��321���1�
2��1��32�� �3���/�	��3244��/��3��3��
4	�4��2������4	��
�4���.����32��
����	�2���������3���/2���E4�
��1���E��/��
7�
�
 �"��,��;�������%�'� �32���3��244��
2�����.��244	�0�1���.6�
������3��


��1������� �����1� ��� �3�� 	�4�	�� 2�1� �3��
	�4�2
������ ��� ���1������ =� /��3� �3�� �����/��5�
�412��1�
��1�����;�

�
=7� �3�� 1�0���4����� 3�	�.�� 4�	�����1� �32��� .��


2		��1� ���� ����� ��� 2

�	12�
�� /��3� �3��
244	�0�1� 4�2��� ���.�	�1� ��==!<=A7�78!=B�(�
��==!<=A7�7�<=B)(� ��==!<=A7�7��!B)(�
��==!<=A7�7��=B�(� ��==!<=A7�7���B�(�
��==!<=A7�7��<B�(� ��==!<=A7�7��8B�(�
��==!<=A7�7��CB�(� ��==!<=A7�7��9B�(�
��==!<=A7�7��AB�(� ��==!<=A7�7��DB�(�
��==!<=A7�7���B�(� ��==!<=A7�7�<!B�(�
�==!<=A7�7�<�B�(� ��==!<=A7�7�<<(�
��==!<=A7�7�<C� 2�1� �!==7�7=!9B�� �	� 2���
4�2����	�1��2������.��:�������25	��1� ���/	����5�
.�� �3�� ��
2�� ��2����5� ���3�	���� 2�� 2��
2���1���������3��244	�0�1�4�2��7�=7�

�
 ��"��;� ��� �3�� �4������ ��� �3�� ��
2�� ��2����5� ���3�	����

�3�� 4	�4��2�(� ��.6�
�� ��� �3�� 
��1������� �����1(�
/���1� ���� 
2���� ��1��� 32	�� ��� ����	����� ���
2

��/��15�1� ��4�	�2�
�(� /��3� 42	��
��2	�
	���	��
������3��4	��
�4�������3�����(��2�1�
24��
2������(�.��+1�0�	����(�����2��2.����	2��4�	��2�1�
1	2��25�7� ������
3� �3��4	�4��2�� 
��4�����/��3�
4���
���� ���(� ��=(� ���(� ��A(� �8(� ��82� 2�1�
��=C����� �3������� �����	
� ��
2����2����4�����
�	2��7�

�
%��'� �32�� 
����1�	2����� .�� 5�0��� ��� �3�� #��0�	�����

�	20��� ��2�� 2�� �3�� ��0��.�	� ������5� ��� �3��
��2����5����������7��7�

�
�
����� �:��	�1��
=7��������3��1�
����������
��2�1���
��1������3��/��
���
4�2����5�1�
�����������/��3����3��25	��1������
2���7��

�
�
����

Page 5



�7���
��1��2���������	���0��.�	�������57���
�
�

����

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 �$��"��(��32�	�
F�3��������5���2	��1�2��87<!�4��2�1������3�1�2��87CC�4�G7�

Page 6



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01768/FULM  Item No: 4a  
Page 1 of 9 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: Planning Committee Ward: Osbaldwick 
Date: 17 December 2009 Parish: Osbaldwick Parish Council 
 
Reference: 09/01768/FULM 
Application at: Land To The West Of Metcalfe Lane Osbaldwick York  
For: Change of use of agricultural land into nature conservation area 

with public access 
By: Mr Mark Warters 
Application Type: Major Full Application (13 weeks) 
Target Date: 28 December 2009 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 The site is to the east of the City on the outskirts of the main urban area and 
covers  approximately 20.5 hectares. To the north of the site lies Burnholme College 
and the residential area of Meadlands, and to the west the residential areas of Fifth 
Avenue and Temple Avenue. Metcalfe Lane runs parallel with the site's eastern 
boundary connecting Meadlands with Osbaldwick. It provides the only access to 
National Grid's operational land to the east of the application site. Other cycle tracks 
and footpaths cross the site linking Metcalfe Lane to the east and Burnholme College 
to the north with Fifth Avenue and Temple Avenue to the west.  
 
1.2 It is proposed to change the use of the agricultural land to a nature conservation 
area with public access. Further information submitted by the applicant confirms the 
type of activities proposed within the site to be dog walking, general walking, general 
play, bird watching, hedgerow fruit gathering, horse riding and all other related 
leisure activities. Whilst parts of the fields may have already been used for such 
purposes they have not been formalised through the planning system and as such  
are unauthorised.  
 
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  
 
1.3 In May 2007 the Secretary of State granted outline planning permission  for 
residential development for approximately 540 dwellings, including public open 
space, associated footpaths, cycleways, roads, engineering works and landscaping 
(planning ref. No.  03/02709/OUT).  
 
1.4 Following the Secretary of State's decision a Reserved Matters application for 
part of the site (known as Phase 1) was submitted to build 64 dwellings, including 
public open space, associated footpaths, cycleways, roads, engineering works and 
landscaping (07/02789/REMM). Permission was granted in February 2008.  
 
1.5 In April this year planning permission was given to erect a two storey building 
containing a single storey plant room and two storey ancillary community facility with 
separate foul water pumping station and access road. (08/02757/FUL).  
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 

Agenda Item 4aPage 7



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01768/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 2 of 9 

Conservation Area GMS Constraints: Osbaldwick CONF 
 
City Boundary GMS Constraints: York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams GMS Constraints:  East Area (1) 0003 
 
Floodland GMS Constraints: Flood Zone 3  
 
Floodland GMS Constraints: Flood Zone 2  
 
Floodzone 2 GMS Constraints: Flood Zone 2 CONF 
 
Floodzone 3 GMS Constraints: Flood Zone 3  
 
Schools GMS Constraints: St. Aelred's RC Primary 0223 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYSP9 
Action Areas 
  
CYH1 
Housing Allocations 
  
CYH3B 
Managed Release of Allocated Housing Sites 
  
CYGP3 
Planning against crime 
  
CYGP4A 
Sustainability 
  
CYGP9 
Landscaping 
  
CYGP15 
Protection from flooding 
  
CYNE1 
Trees, woodlands, hedgerows 
  
CYNE2 
Rivers and Stream Corridors, Ponds and Wetland Habitats 
  
CYNE6 
Species protected by law 
  
CYNE7 
Habitat protection and creation 
 
CYHE3 

Page 8



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01768/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 3 of 9 

Conservation Areas 
  
CYHE11 
Trees and landscape 
  
CYT4 
Cycle parking standards 
  
CYL1 
Open spaces in new residential devts 
  
CYV1 
Criteria for visitor related devt 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
EXTERNAL  
 
3.1 Neighbours consulted, site notices posted, and Press Notice published. 
Consultation expired on 28th October 2009: 
 
i). Twelve letters of support received, with the following comments made: 
 
- the proposal would make the best use of land as it is a place of natural beauty and 
would benefit the surrounding communities; 
- the site contains protected species such as Water Vole, Great Crested Newts and 
various types of protected bats; 
- the meadows are frequently used by local residents. Thus various species of 
wildlife should be protected; 
- this application would benefit the people of York if successful; 
- planning permission should only be given for nature conservation area; 
- The Environmental Statement submitted with the proposed residential development 
in 2003 highlighted the significance and value of the marshy field at Metcalfe Lane. 
The report also stated that the majority of the hedgerow on the site can be 
considered to be of high ecological quality.  
- the site also contains a variety of birds including scarce birds such as "Firecrest"   
- housing schemes should be situated on brownfield sites; 
- houses should not be built on greenbelt land; 
- the proposal has the potential for community engagement and educational usage; 
- the proposal would benefit local residents more than the approved housing 
development; 
 
ii). In addition one letter received with the following comments:- 
 
- this application can only be supported if the scheme is supported by a clear 
management plan with suitable structures and if the proposal is properly funded;  
- the scheme should stop the current intermittent use of land for unofficial 
motorcycle/quad bike purposes; 
-the site should be better managed; 
- The public enquiry already concluded that the site can be used for housing; 
nevertheless brownfield sites should come forward in the future for such purposes; 
 

Page 9



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01768/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 4 of 9 

iii). One letter of objection received expressing the following concerns: 
 
- the area will become even more scruffy than it already is if approval is given to the 
scheme; 
- the Council will be unable to afford the maintenance and upkeep of the area to a 
better standard if they still own the land after the approval; 
- the land already has planning permission for much needed affordable housing and 
the CYC should pursue that line of use; 
- the residents at Grid House has never been consulted by the applicant about the 
scheme; 
 
3.2 Osbaldwick Parish Council  - response received on 20th October 2009 supports  
the application. 
 
3.3 Meadlands Area Resident Association (MARA) - response received on 27th 
October 2009: It states:- 
 
-This area provides recreational facilities for very many local residents.  
- It is recognised by the authority that the area east of the city is deficient in the 
provision of recreational and open space east of the city.  
- On behalf of the residents association MARA strongly supports this application.  
 
3.4 Natural England consulted, response received on 13th October 2009: 
 
- No comments made other than to refer to the Council's own ecological advisor 
(Countryside Officer)  for an appropriate assessment. 
 
3.5 York Natural Environment Trust (YNET) consulted. Response received on 27th 
October 2009: States:- 
 
- The York Natural Environment Trust (YNET) supports this application 
- the site is already a nature conservation area, though currently in need of a return 
to proper management to restore and protect its full potential.  
- It has a long established and continuing pattern of public access. Approval of this 
application would therefore do no more than ratify this historic position, to the 
potential continuing benefit of the people of York. 
- The application concurs with YNET's long held position that the proper use of these 
publicly owned meadows is for landscape, nature conservation and public amenity. 
- The site offers access to natural green space, with no particular effort or journey 
required to enjoy it, which concurs with Natural England policies, in a part of the city 
now demonstrated to have a major shortfall of open space generally.  
- The size and importance of the site also gives it the potential to fulfil public natural 
open space requirements for a larger area.  
- The application concurs with Government policy, supported by YNET, that 
development should happen sequentially on brown field sites before green field sites 
and therefore offers an acceptable and desirable alternative to other approved plans 
for the site. 
- YNET has stated its support for suitable development of the York Central and 
British Sugar sites and has made specific recommendations for progressing this 
within the current economic climate. Transfer of intentions and resources allocated 
for housing development on Osbaldwick meadows to these major brown field 

Page 10



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01768/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 5 of 9 

holdings, could stimulate these currently stalled developments and this too would 
concur with YNET's aspirations. 
- At the 2006 'Derwenthorpe' Public Inquiry YNET indicated its positive experience of 
neglected meadow restoration at its Rawcliffe Meadows Nature Reserve, using 
Government Countryside Stewardship funding and its experience of working with 
community groups at all of its nature reserves.  
- It advocated similar management of the Osbaldwick Meadows for nature 
conservation and public amenity group by a local community group and offered its 
support if requested. YNET re-affirms this offer of support in the case of 
developments arising from this application. 
- This application offers potential benefits for York that go far beyond its immediate 
parameters and York Natural Environment Trust strongly requests members to 
approve this application. 
 
3.6 Police Architectural Liaison Officer consulted :- 
 
No objections raised. 
 
3.7 Environment Agency consulted. Response received on 19th November 2009 :- 
 
No objections; informative recommended. 
 
INTERNAL  
 
3.8 City Development consulted, response received on 29th October 2009: 
 
- Based on the significance of this site in terms of the City's future housing supply, 
which is recognised in the draft Local Plan and the emerging LDF evidence base and 
housing trajectory, the team raises a policy objection to this application. 
 
3.9 Council's Countryside Officer consulted, response received on 20th November 
2009: 
 
-In summary, the site contains species derived from the old species-rich swards that 
were formally much more common. The distribution of these species is though very 
patchy and many of them were not found in great numbers. It is this paucity of 
distribution that prevents their designation as a SINC grassland. Although not of 
SINC quality, these grassland are still of considerable local interest.  
 
3.10 Highway Network Management - Response received on 20th October 2009: 
 
- No objections as it is understood that no car parking is to be provided. 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 The key issues are:- 
i). Principle of the proposed change of use; 
 
ii). Ecology and nature conservation considerations  
 
 
 

Page 11



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01768/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 6 of 9 

PRINCIPLE OF THE PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE  
 
4.2 Planning Policy Statement no.3 (PPS 3) set out the national planning policy 
framework for delivering the Government's housing objectives. This PPS reflects the 
Government's commitment to improving the affordability and supply of housing in all 
communities. Paragraph 10 of PPS3 sets out a list of specific outcomes that the 
planning system should deliver, these include: 
 
i). A sufficient quantity of housing taking into account need and demand; 
 
ii). A mix of housing, both market and affordable, particularly in terms of tenure and 
price, to support a wide variety of households in all areas, both urban and rural, and 
 
iii). Housing developments in suitable locations, which offer a good range of 
community facilities and with good access to jobs, key services and infrastructure. 
 
4.3 PPS1 "Delivering Sustainable Development" sets out the key principles that 
should be applied to ensure that development plans and decisions taken on planning 
applications contribute to the delivery of sustainable development. 
 
4.4 PPS1 (Supplement) "Planning and Climate Change" sets out how planning 
should contribute to reducing emissions, stabilising climate change and take into 
account the unavoidable consequences. 
 
4.5 Policy H1 "Provision and Distribution Housing" of the Yorkshire and Humber 
Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) (2008) states the region's housing stock should be 
improved and increased to provide accommodation for all households wanting 
homes. The main mechanisms to achieve this are Local Development Frameworks 
(LDFs), Development Control, and Local Housing Strategies.  
 
4.6 Policy T1 of RSS (2008) "Personal travel reduction and modal shift" states the 
region will aim to reduce travel demand, traffic growth and congestion, shift to modes 
with lower environmental impacts, and improve journey time reliability. 
 
4.7 Policy H1 "Housing Allocation" of the City of York Draft Local Plan sets out a list 
of sites across the City to accommodate 4,491 dwellings. The site is identified as site 
H1.6 to accommodate approximately 520 dwellings.  
 
4.8 The site is also recognised as a long standing housing allocation, dating from 
1994 in the York Green Belt Plan and Southern Ryedale Local Plan, and most 
recently in the City of York Draft Local Plan.  
 
4.9 The site is further identified in the emerging LDF evidence base (the Strategic 
Housing Land Availability Assessment) as significant in terms of contributing to the 
City's long term housing supply and features in the first 5 years of the housing 
trajectory.  
 
4.10 In addition, the site is identified in policy SP9 as an Action Area for a 14ha 
residential urban extension and open space. This policy states planning permission 
will not be granted for any development, which could prejudice the implementation of 
their comprehensive redevelopment.  
 

Page 12



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01768/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 7 of 9 

4.11 Policy GP4a "Sustainability" of the City of York Draft Local Plan sets out a list of 
criteria required to be considered for all developments which require planning 
permission. 
 
4.12 This application seeks planning consent to change the use of an allocated 
Housing site for purposes other than its intended purpose. As such the proposed use 
would have an adverse effect on York's future housing supply, contrary to policy H1 
of RSS 2008, policies H1 (Housing Allocation) and SP9 (Action Areas) of the City of 
York Draft Local Plan, the findings of the Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment, and Government's objectives set out in paragraphs 10 and 69 of PPS3. 
It would also undermine the government's objective of providing sufficient quantity of 
housing to meet needs and demands, and the need to provide a mix of housing, both 
market and affordable, particularly in terms of tenure and price to support a wide 
variety of households in all areas.  
 
4.13 There is a shortfall in natural and semi-natural open space in the eastern part of 
the City's urban area. Nevertheless it is not considered that such a shortfall should 
be addressed by losing a significant housing site in an area considered by the 
Secretary of State as a sustainable location for housing. 
 
ECOLOGY AND NATURE CONSERVATION 
 
4.14 Planning Policy Statement no.9 (PPS9) "Biodiversity and Geological 
Conservation" sets out the Government's national policies on protection of 
biodiversity and geological conservation. Paragraph 1 (v) of PPS9 states 
"Development proposals where the principle objective is to conserve or enhance 
biodiversity and geological conservation interests should be permitted".  
 
4.15 Policy ENV8 "Biodiversity" of the Regional Spatial Strategy to 2026 states the 
Region will safeguard and enhance biodiversity and geological heritage, and ensure 
that the natural environment functions as an integrated network of habitats.   
 
4.16 The site is also identified on the proposals map as "Recreational Opportunity 
Area". Policy L1d of the City of York Draft Local Plan states open space in these 
areas will be brought forward for public access in conjunction with the development 
of associated allocations. 
 
4.17 The Countryside Officer's latest findings accord with the Inspector's conclusions 
in his report to the Secretary of State dated 3 March 2007, which ruled that "the site 
is not a SINC. On the basis of the evidence presented and the current 'guidelines in 
operation, (he) considered that it would not now merit designation as a SINC" 
(paragraph 24.134).  
 
4.18 In line with PPS 9 and policies NE6 and NE7 of the Draft Local Plan the 
proposal is unlikely to have a material harm on species protected by law and 
important natural habitats. No objections have been raised by the Countryside 
Officer.  
 
AMENITY AND HIGHWAY SAFETY 
 
4.19 It is proposed that the new nature conservation area would be used by 
members of the public for activities such as dog walking, general walking and play, 

Page 13



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01768/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 8 of 9 

bird watching, hedgerow fruit gathering, horse riding, and other similar leisure 
activities. The applicant claims that  the site is visited by approximately 200 to 300 
visitors a day, and that this is likely to grow if planning consent is granted to 
formalise the (currently unauthorised) use of the site for leisure purposes.  
 
4.20 There is currently no car parking within site, and under the proposal this would   
remain unchanged as it is expected by the applicant that visitors would tend to arrive 
by walking and cycling. Approximately 5 to 10 cycle parking spaces would be 
introduced along the Sustrans cycle route if permission were  granted. No objections 
have been raised by the Council's Highway Network Management team, although 
since granting  permission would legitimise the use of the site for publicly accessible  
nature conservation feature (subject to owner consent)  it may well lead to additional 
potentially car borne visitors, who would park on the highways adjacent to the site.  
 
4.21 In terms of the hours of opening, the site would be opened to the public 24 
hours a days, 7 days a week. It is not envisaged that any full or part time staff would  
be employed, although certain maintenance tasks such as hay and hedge cutting 
would be carried out by contractors on a yearly basis. Smaller tasks would be 
undertaken by voluntary groups. Whilst the Police Architectural Liaison officer has 
not raised concerns with the application, the proposed unfettered public use and 
access does raise potential security  issues in respect of the rear of properties off 
Ennerdale, Ambleside Avenue, and the rear of Meadlands.  
 
4.22 There would be no building work or operations proposed as part of the scheme. 
The layout of the site would also remain unchanged. All trees, hedges, grass areas, 
wild flowers etc are intended to be preserved and protected. 
 
4.23 Due to the nature, type and scale of the proposed use it is unlikely that the 
scheme itself would unacceptably harm the amenity of the local residents and school 
pupils, although from the above, concerns may arise if car borne visitors were to 
start visiting the site and there may be security implications for properties backing 
onto the site. The open use also gives rise to the possibility of large numbers of 
visitors congregating or attending one off events at the site. The visual appearance 
and natural features of the site would remain unchanged as no building work or other 
engineering operations have been proposed as part of the scheme.  
 
OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.24 SITE MANAGEMENT - Concerns have been raised regarding anti-social 
behaviour within the site. If planning permission is given a site management plan 
condition setting out how the nature conservation area would be managed and 
secured would be considered necessary. 
 
4.25 CONSERVATION AREA - Part of the site along the south east  boundary forms 
part of Osbaldwick conservation area. Due to nature, type and scale of the proposed 
use and the screening provisions afforded by the existing boundary hedge and 
planting it is unlikely that the proposal would have an adverse impact on the 
character and appearance of the conservation area. If permission were to be  
granted a landscaping scheme would be required by condition. 
 
 
 

Page 14



 

Application Reference Number: 09/01768/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 9 of 9 

5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 Having taken all relevant matters into account,  including the key issues above 
and representations received,  it is considered that the proposed change of use to 
nature conservation area from agricultural land would:  
 
i). have an adverse effect on York's future housing supply; 
 
ii). undermine the government's objective of providing sufficient quantity of housing 
to meet needs and demands; 
 
iii). affect the Government's objective of providing a mix of housing to support a wide 
variety of households in all areas 
 
5.2 As such the proposal is contrary to paragraph 27 (parts iv, v and vii) of Planning 
Policy Statement no.1, paragraph 10 of Planning Policy Statement no.1 
(Supplement), paragraphs 10, 36 and 69 of Planning Policy Statement no.3, policies 
H1 and T1 of Regional Spatial Strategy Yorkshire and Humber 2008, policies H1 
(Housing Allocation) and SP9 (Action Areas) of the City of York Draft Local Plan, and 
the findings of the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment. Thus this 
application is recommended for refusal. 
 
5.3 Other matters relating to the security of adjacent properties, off site parking and 
occasional or possibly frequent use by large groups are noted and would need to be 
considered if the principle of the use had been acceptable. 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:    Refuse   
 
 1  The site has planning permission for residential development. It is also 
identified as site H1.6 under Policy H1 of the City of York Draft Local Plan to 
accommodate approximately 520 dwellings. As such the proposed use would: 
 
i. have an adverse effect on York's future housing supply; 
ii. undermine the government's objective of providing sufficient quantity of housing to 
meet needs and demands; and 
iii. affect the government's objective of providing a mix of housing, both market and 
affordable, particularly in terms of tenure and price to support a wide variety of 
households in all areas. 
 
As such the proposal is contrary to policy H1 of Regional Spatial Strategy Yorkshire 
and Humber 2008, policies H1 (Housing Allocation) and SP9 (Action Areas) of the 
City of York Draft Local Plan, the findings of the Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment, and the Government's objectives set out in paragraphs 10 and 69 of 
Planning Policy Statement 3 (Housing). 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Billy Wong Development Control Officer 
Tel No: 01904 551326 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

�

�

�

�

�

����

�

����

����
����

�
����

�

�

����

����

����

����

����
�
����

����������	
���
���������	�����
��������������������������	
��
����

����������	
���	�
�	��������	������	���	���
	�
�	����������
�
	�
�	����������	�
	���	���������	����������	�

���	�	�����
�������
�	�   !

"����
������	������������	��
������	�����	�������
�	���	���
����	��	�����������	��	�����	�����������!

��������	


�
�
���
����

�	�

��	��

����	���

�
�	

��
�	��

�������

���������	
������	�
���	����	

�������������

����������	
�����
��

������������������������������������

�����
����	�����

�����
����������

 !"���

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Reference Number: 09/02071/LEGAL  Item No:4b 
Page 1 of 7 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: Planning Committee Ward: Guildhall 
Date: 17 December 2009 Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel 
 
Reference: 09/02071/LEGAL 
Application at: M F I Furniture Centre Ltd Foss Islands Road York YO31 7UL  
For: Variation of legal agreement to allow food retail to be traded from 

the premises 
By: CB Richard Ellis Limited 
Application Type: Legal Agreement 
Target Date: 30 November 2009 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 The application site is situated beyond the edge of York's Central Historic Core to 
the east of Foss Islands Road. Directly opposite the site, further to the west and across 
Foss Islands Road, lies the remains of York's ancient City walls. Foss Islands Retail 
Park, which includes the likes of Kwik Fit, Homebase, Morrison's and fast food outlets 
with associated car park lies to the north. To the east lies a series of single storey 
warehouses, and to the south is a car garage/workshop.  
 
1.2 In pursuance of Section 106A "Modification and Discharge of planning obligations" 
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) this application seeks 
consent to vary the legal agreement imposed when it was occupied by B&Q Plc in 
1994, and the original legal agreement imposed in 1986 (known at that time as Section 
52 Agreement). 
 
1.3 Paragraph 4, part 1 of the 1994 legal agreement restricts the site to be used for the 
retail sale of non-food goods and ancillary snack bar, sale of fuel for motor vehicles, 
and the sale or display of motor vehicles. In addition paragraph 3 of the 1986 Section 
52 Agreement restricts the site to be used only for the sale of furniture, decorating 
materials, building products, floor coverings, do-it-yourself and related out of door 
products, leisure goods and maintenance products. It is proposed to vary the above 
stipulations to allow a food retailer to trade from the premises.  
 
1.4 In addition to this Legal Agreement application 3 separate planning applications 
have been submitted to: 
 
i. introduce new traffic lights and pedestrian refuge; 
ii. alter the existing car park layout; and  
iii. alter the existing building to include new entrance, shop front and ancillary facilities.  
 
1.5 These applications are of a relatively minor nature and are likely to be dealt with 
under delegated powers. 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
Contaminated Land GMS Constraints:  

Agenda Item 4bPage 19



 

Application Reference Number: 09/02071/LEGAL  Item No: 4b 
Page 2 of 7 

 
City Boundary GMS Constraints: York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams GMS Constraints: Central Area 0002 
 
DC Area Teams GMS Constraints:  East Area (1) 0003 
 
Floodland GMS Constraints: Flood Zone 2  
 
Floodland GMS Constraints: Flood Zone 3  
 
Floodzone 2 GMS Constraints: Flood Zone 2 CONF 
 
Floodzone 3 GMS Constraints: Flood Zone 3  
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYS2 
Out of centre retail warehouse criteria 
  
CYSP7A 
The sequential approach to development 
  
CYGP4B 
Air Quality 
  
CYT13A 
Travel Plans and Contributions 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
3.1 Neighbours notified, site notice posted and press advert, expires on 16 December 
2009 - no response received to date.  
 
3.2 Guildhall Planning Panel. Consultation expires on 10 December 2009 - no 
response received to date.  
 
3.3 City Development team - Response received on 24 November 2009: 
- The proposed store would be on an existing unit which has an unrestricted retail 
consent so could therefore be used for any comparison goods such as clothing and 
footwear which could have a significant impact on the city centre.  
- In terms of the convenience retail proposal, although in quantitative terms there is no 
immediate capacity, the Assessment completed by CBRE, CB Richard Ellis has 
established that the impact on the city centre is relatively small and it is in an 
accessible location which is centrally located.  
- In addition if the store is considered in how it relates to the Foss Islands development 
which is restricted to bulky goods and food retail the team would look positively at a 
convenience goods retail application in this location.  
- The team would thus not wish to raise a policy objection.  
3.4 Highway Network Management team consulted - response received on 26 
November 2009: 

Page 20



 

Application Reference Number: 09/02071/LEGAL  Item No: 4b 
Page 3 of 7 

- the team would like to see a draft of the proposed S106 and from a highways 
viewpoint it should contain the following:  
 
i. A financial contribution towards the Foss Basin Masterplan of £90.5k 
(a) 50% (£45.25k) to be paid prior to the implementation of the consents associated 
with the legal agreement. 
(b) 50% (£45.25k) to be paid within 1 month of the store opening having a clawback if 
funds remain unspent of 10 years. 
 
ii. A requirement that traffic count surveys are undertaken 12 and 24 months from the 
date of the store opening with the approved food retail use. The dates, locations and 
nature of the surveys are to be agreed in writing with the authority prior to the surveys 
being carried out. The full count survey results shall be provided to the authority and 
agreed in writing within 1 month of the date of the surveys being carried out. 
 
Should the level of vehicular trips associated with the store during the weekday PM 
peak be greater than a net increase of 90 vehicular trips, then the developer shall pay 
£914.46 per additional vehicular trip. Such additional funding should  be agreed in 
writing by the authority and the sum received from the developer within 3 months of 
agreement of the figure. The funds shall be spent within 10 years of receipt or 
otherwise returned to the developer. 
 
iii. A financial contribution of £5k towards the amendment/creation/extinguishment of 
Traffic Regulation Orders in the vicinity of the site. The scheme is to be paid upon 
completion of the agreement having a clawback if funds remain unspent of 10 years. 
 
iv. Travel Plan requirement 
 
3.5 Environmental Protection Unit (Air Quality) - response received on 18 November 
2009: 
 
- In January 2002 City of York Council declared an Air Quality Management Area 
(AQMA) based on predicted surpass of the annual average nitrogen dioxide objective 
in five areas of the city.   
- The declaration of the AQMA placed a legal duty on the council to improve air quality 
in the city and to demonstrate that it is actively pursuing the 40ug/m3 annual objective.  
- In order to demonstrate a commitment to improving air quality the council was 
required to prepare an Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP).  
- The AQAP identifies measures the council intends to take to improve air quality in the 
city following the declaration of the AQMA.  
- The proposed development site is adjacent to City of York Council's AQMA and 
Lawrence St (which is in close proximity to the site) and forms one of the five areas of 
'technical breach', where excessiveness of the annual average nitrogen dioxide 
objective have been monitored.   
- The Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) undertakes monitoring of nitrogen dioxide 
at a number of sites along Lawrence Street.  
- Concentrations of nitrogen dioxide monitored at these sites have indicated extensive 
breaches of the health based annual average nitrogen dioxide objective in recent 
years. 

Page 21



 

Application Reference Number: 09/02071/LEGAL  Item No: 4b 
Page 4 of 7 

- Based on national air quality guidance, air quality may be a significant consideration 
where changes in Annual Average Daily Traffic Flow (AADT) are shown to increase by 
more than 5%, on roads with existing flows of 10,000 vehicles or more.   
- The change in proportion of HGVs entering and leaving the site can also be a 
consideration when considering whether an air quality assessment is required for a 
development proposal. 
- The traffic assessment for the site provides turning movements in terms of 
Passenger Car Units.   
- In order to assess this proposal in terms of air quality, further information is required 
from the applicants.  
- For all links covered in the traffic assessment, and for all scenarios, the following is 
required : 
 
i. Annual Average Daily Traffic Flows (AADTs)  
ii. % HGV / % LGV 
iii. Average speed for each link 
iv. % change in AADT between the base case and the 'with-development' scenarios. 
 
- Ideally this information will be tabulated to allow an easy comparison between the 
base case traffic movements and those with the development in place. 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 The main planning issues to be considered are:  
 
i. Vitality and viability of York City and District Centres; 
ii. Highway considerations; and 
iii. Air Quality  
 
VITALITY AND VIABILITY OF YORK'S CITY AND DISTRICT CENTRES  
 
4.2 In accordance with Planning Policy Statement (PPS) no.6 "Planning for Town 
Centres", Policy E2 "Town centre and major facilities" of the Regional Spatial Strategy 
for Yorkshire and Humber (2008), and Policies SP6 "Location Strategy" and S2 "Out of 
Centre Retail Warehouses" of the City of York Draft Local Plan retail developments 
must have regard to the followings:  
 
i. That there are no unacceptable impacts on existing centres 
ii. That there are no more central sites for the development 
iii. That the development is of an appropriate scale 
iv. That the locations are accessible.  
v. The need for development  
 
i. Impact 
 
4.3 In relation to impact, results from a telephone survey from York's Retail Study 
showed that 80% of the local expenditure on main food shopping was going to out of 
town shops including 35% to Asda at Monks Cross and 29% to Tesco at Clifton Moor. 
Only 9% were using Sainsbury's at Foss Bank. The new Morrison's store was not 
trading at the time of the survey. The impact analysis table given by the report 
submitted with the application shows that the main impact would be on the out of 

Page 22



 

Application Reference Number: 09/02071/LEGAL  Item No: 4b 
Page 5 of 7 

centre and out of town supermarkets such as Morrison's, Foss Islands (8.4%), 
Sainsbury's Foss Bank (5.2%), Sainsbury's Monks Cross (6%), Asda, Monks Cross 
(4.3%), Tesco, Clifton Moor (4.3%) rather than on York City Centre which has an 
expected impact of 2.6%. These figures indicate that the main impact of the new store 
would be on out of centre food stores. The retail study also indicated those stores 
which are trading above company averages.  
 
ii. Sequential Test  
 
4.4 In addition to the issue of impact it is also important to consider whether there are 
any sequentially preferable sites available. The applicants have assessed allocated 
sites within the Local Plan and other sites currently known. This has been done in a 
satisfactory manner in relation to 'availability, suitability and viability'. The result shows 
that there is no available, suitable and viable site within the sites identified by the City 
Development team. 
 
iii. Scale  
 
4.5 An existing purpose built building for retail currently stands on this site, at an 
appropriate scale for the nature of the proposed food store. 
 
iv. Accessibility  
 
4.6 The store is located 900m from the Central Shopping Area. This is classed as 
being out-of-centre in PPS6 terms but the site is adjacent to the city centre inset 
boundary in an accessible location which is well related to residential areas. In policy 
terms, this site is sequentially preferable to other retail concentrations elsewhere in the 
City of York urban area, notably free standing food stores and Monks Cross and 
Clifton Moor retail parks, which are located in out of town locations.  
 
v. Need  
 
4.7 The York's Retail Study recommends that York should seek to re-address the 
balance between the over concentration of existing out of centre food stores which are 
trading above company averages towards the city centre and neighbourhood centres. 
The city centre is constrained by its historic environment which means that it is difficult 
to provide a site of a larger food store in York city centre, and therefore sites such as 
Foss Islands is the next best option for a large food store.   
 
4.8 In terms of 'need', York's Retail Study (2008) indicates that there are some 
capacity issues for convenience goods across York which need to be taken into 
account as part of this application. It concludes that by 2012 there is capacity for 3,146 
sq m net convenience floorspace, growing to 5,034 sq m net by 2017.  
 
4.9 Taking into account recent commitments which need to be deducted from this 
forecast including the extension to Morrison's at Acomb (760 sq.m), the Aldi Store at 
Monks Cross (1,125 sq m), the Change of Use of a retail unit at Foss Islands (1,115 sq 
m) and the extension to the Sainsbury's Store at Monks Cross (302 sq m) the retail 
capacity would stand at -153sq.m net to 2012 and 1732sq.m net to 2017. Whilst in 
quantitative terms there is no immediate capacity the above analysis shows the impact 
on the city centre from the food store is relatively small and it is in an accessible 

Page 23



 

Application Reference Number: 09/02071/LEGAL  Item No: 4b 
Page 6 of 7 

location which is centrally located. In addition the adjacent Foss Islands development 
is restricted to bulky goods and food retail. Therefore the sale of convenience goods 
such as food in this location is considered to be acceptable.  
 
4.10 Another food retail store 'Morrison's' which is also located at Foss Islands has a 
condition restricting ancillary non-food goods to 15% of the net floorspace. It is 
considered that a similar requirement should be imposed as part of this Section 106 
variation application. The applicants have accepted this. 
 
HIGHWAY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
4.11 The Transport Assessment submitted with the application shows the level of 
traffic from a non-food to food retail store will increase. For instance according to the 
assessment carried out by the applicants' highway consultant the daily vehicular trips 
on Saturdays would increase by 2777, and on weekdays there would be an additional 
3084 trips added to the daily vehicular trips. The following financial contributions have 
been requested by Highway Network Management: 
 
i. £90.5k towards Foss Basin Masterplan; 
ii. traffic count surveys to be undertaken 12 and 24 months from the date of the store 
opening, with  £914.46 to be paid per additional vehicular trip after deducting the net 
increase of 99 vehicle trips; and  
 
iii. Travel Plan 
 
4.12 In addition, as part of the scheme it is proposed to introduce new traffic lights and 
pedestrian refuge on Foss Islands Road at the applicant's own cost. A financial 
contribution of £5k has therefore been requested towards the 
amendment/creation/extinguishment of the Traffic Regulation Orders.  
 
4.13 Upon further negotiation the applicants are prepared to pay £90K towards the 
Foss Basin Masterplan, £5k towards Traffic Regulation Order and prepare a travel 
plan. However the open-ended contribution arising from the 12 month and 24 month 
traffic count surveys are not considered to be appropriate largely because the scale of 
the financial contribution is not fully known until 12 and 24 months after the store 
opens. Such a requirement is not considered to be reasonable, since the application 
must be assessed for its likely impact at the time of submission. Any expected future 
increase in traffic levels should be anticipated and accommodated for in the measures 
proposed at the time of consideration of the application. The Council's Legal Services 
Section confirms this position. In addition, to expect further contributions generated 
from as yet unknown possible increases in traffic levels would add considerable risk 
for any future occupier who will be responsible for paying this open-ended 
contribution. 
 
AIR QUALITY  
 
4.14 According to the Air Quality officer, where changes in Annual Average Daily 
Traffic Flow (AADT) are shown to increase by more than 5% on roads with existing 
flows of 10,000 vehicles or more air quality may be a significant consideration. 
Therefore in order to assess this proposal in terms of air quality further information is 
required from the applicants to determine whether air quality assessment is required.  

Page 24



 

Application Reference Number: 09/02071/LEGAL  Item No: 4b 
Page 7 of 7 

 
4.15 At the time of writing the applicants' traffic consultants are in the process of 
preparing the requested details. Whilst the annual average daily traffic flow is likely to 
increase as a result of the proposed food store the application site is situated outside 
the Air Quality Management Area (AQMA). In addition, Lawrence Street, an area 
where nitrogen dioxide exceeds the annual average is over 140m away from the store. 
Whether there is a need to conduct air quality assessment will be updated at the 
committee meeting. 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
Subject to a new Section 106 Agreement requiring: 
 
i. 15% restriction on ancillary non-food goods by net floorspace; 
ii.  £90.5k towards Foss Basin Masterplan;  
iii. Travel Plan; and  
iv. £5k towards the Traffic Regulation Orders 
 
The proposed variation to the existing Section 52 Agreement is regarded as 
acceptable. 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
  
 1  Authorise variation of the legal agreements to allow for the sale of food subject 
to the additional obligations outlined in section 5.0. 
 
REASON FOR APPROVAL: 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the new Section 
106 Agreement requirements listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of 
acknowledged importance, with particular reference to the vitality and viability of 
York's city and district centres, highway considerations and air quality. As such the 
proposal complies with national and local planning policy, in particular  with most 
relevant Policies S2, SP7a, GP4b and T13a of the City of York Development Control 
Local Plan. 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Billy Wong Development Control Officer 
Tel No: 01904 551326 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



�

����

����

����

�

����������	
���
���������	�����
��������������������������	
��
����

����������	
���	�
�	��������	������	���	���
	�
�	����������
�
	�
�	����������	�
	���	���������	����������	�

���	�	�����
�������
�	�   !

"����
������	������������	��
������	�����	�������
�	���	���
����	��	�����������	��	�����	�����������!

��������	


�
�
���
����

�	�

��	��

����	���

�
�	

��
�	��

�������

���������	��
��
�	�


�
������������

����������	
�����
��

������������������������������������

�����
����	�����

�����
����������

 ! �"�

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 

   

 
Planning Committee 17 December  2009 
 
Report of the Director of City Strategy 
 

Planning Performance Agreements - Charter 

Summary 

1. To request the formal adoption by Members of a Charter for use in the 
formulation and implementation of Planning Performance Agreements (PPAs). 

 Background 

2. Members will recall that a draft Charter for PPAs was presented to Committee 
on 27 August 2009, for comments prior to public consultation. It was reported 
that PPAs were formally introduced on 6th April 2008, with the objective being 
to improve the quality of major or complex planning applications and the 
decision making process involved. They aim to bring together the Local 
Planning Authority, applicant and key participants in the formulation, 
consultation and assessment of development schemes.  The Charter sets out 
the framework for drawing up a PPA,  including the level of commitment, 
engagement, resources to be employed, and the process that  will be followed.  

Consultation  

3.   Members approved the draft Charter subject to some minor alterations and    
subject to a 6 week consultation period to include:- 

• Consultation with planning agents and consultants 

• Consultation with community groups and amenity bodies 

• Consultation with statutory  and the main non statutory consultees 

• Placement of the Charter document on the Council’s website and in the 
Council Offices 

Analysis 

4. The results of the consultation process are tabulated at Annex 1. Of the 7 
responses received, 5 were from national consultee organisations and 2 from 
local planning agents. The comments received were generally supportive of 
the Charter, with some of the respondents requesting that more information be 
submitted by applicants to be able to better assess proposals. As a result of 
the consultation exercise no significant changes to the Charter are proposed  
(see Annex 2), although the main responsibilities of CYC and of the developer 
are listed in paragraphs 12 and 14 for clarity (changes highlighted in italics and 
underlined). 

Agenda Item 5Page 29



 
Options 

5. Option A. Do not approve and adopt the PPA Charter. This option is not 
recommended. 

6. Option B.   Approve the PPA Charter as set out in Annex 2. This option is 
recommended 

7. Option C.  Approve the PPA Charter with modifications. This option is not 
recommended. 

 

Corporate Objectives 

8. The charter and the introduction of Performance agreements for large 
schemes will help to support the City’s economy, and help to ensure the 
special qualities of the City are considered at the earliest stages of 
development process. The Charter therefore supports the corporate objectives 
relating to making York a thriving city and a sustainable city, as well a 
contributing towards a more effective organisation. 

 

Implications 

 9 Financial –  There are no financial implications directly arising from the 
adoption of a charter for Planning Performance agreements 

10 Human Resources – There are no Human Resources implications directly 
involved within this report and the recommendations within it other than the 
need to allocate officer time towards the more formalised pre application 
processes.  

11. Legal – There are no known legal implications associated with this report or 
the recommendations within it. 

12.  There are no known Equalities, Property, Crime & Disorder or other   
implications associated with the recommendations within this report. 

Risk Management 

13. In compliance with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy. There are no 
risks associated with the recommendations of this report. 

Recommendations 

14. That Members agree Option B to approve the Charter for use in the 
preparation of Planning Performance Agreements.  

Reason 

15.  To provide a project management framework for handling large scale or 
complex major planning applications which will provide certainty for all 
development partners. 

 

Page 30



 
Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

Jonathan Carr, 
Head of Development Control 
Directorate of City Strategy 
 
01904 551303 

Mike Slater 
Assistant Director Planning & Sustainable 
Development, Directorate of City Strategy 
 
Report Approved ü Date 7 December  2009 

    

 

Specialist Implications Officer(s)  None. 
 

Wards Affected:   All Y 
 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Planning Performance Agreements: a new way to manage large-scale major 
planning applications - Government response to consultation replies. Department of 
Communities and Local Government  (CLG).  May 2007 

Implementing Planning Performance Agreements: Guidance Note by  CLG and 
Planning Advisory Service. June  2009 

Development Management Guidance and Discussion Document :Planning Advisory 
Service and Addison Associates.  June 2008 

Killian Pretty Review - Planning Applications: A faster and more Responsive system 
November 2008 CLG  

Government Response to the Killian Pretty Review: CLG. March 2009 

Annexes: 

Annex 1 –  Summary of comments received on Consultation Draft Document 
 
 
Annex 2  - Revised Draft of Charter  
 

 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Consultee Responses to Draft PPA Charter  

 
Annex 1 

 
Consultee Comments on Draft Planning Performance Agreement Charter 
 

Consultee Consultee Comment Officer Response  
Coal Authority Supports principles in the Charter and would be willing 

to enter into pre application discussions where 
appropriate. 

Noted. 

Forestry Commission Happy to support the Charter, and to provide general 
advice relating to regional and national forestry policy 
priorities and objectives. 

Noted. 

Sport England Reference should be made to assisting Statutory 
consultees in getting sufficient information to make 
substantive responses. Details of existing and 
proposed sports facilities are required to be able to 
assess the impact of such applications, with 
information on a scale plan. 

Noted. See changes made at Para 14.  

Civil Aviation Authority  General comments relating to the need to consider 
officially safeguarded aerodromes in development 
plan and consultation with the CAA Other background 
information on development/aviation the issues e.g. 
location of telecom masts and wind turbines is 
included in the response.  

Noted. No change to document. 

Natural England  Welcomes the Charter and committed to responding 
to consultations consistently and efficiently to secure 
benefits to the Natural Environment. 

Noted. No change to document.  

O’Neill Associates No formal comments but refers to another authority’s 
charter as providing clarity for roles and 
responsibilities of the LPA, developer etc 

The other authority’s document sets out in 
bullet point form the roles and 
responsibilities. The same points are largely 
contained in the York draft agreed format, 
although the main points could be included 
in this format for clarity.   
Amendments made at Paras. 12 and 14.  

  

P
age 33



Consultee Responses to Draft PPA Charter 

 
 
Matthew Laverack, Laverack 
Associates Architects 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Asks what is regarded as a complex major project and 
whether any of his developments would be affected. 
Also asks if the charter replaces the Customer 
Contract for Development Control. 

The PPA is intended to cover certain Major 
developments as defined Town and Country 
Planning General Development Procedure 
Order. Those which are large scale of 
complex would be included; as such it is 
unlikely that it would include small-scale 
developments of less than 10 residential 
units. 
 
The Charter does not replace the 
Development Control Customer Contract, 
which was never formally adopted by the 
Council and was not subject to public 
consultation. It is intended to bring forward a 
new customer contract as part of the shift 
towards a Development Management 
approach to application processing. 

 

P
age 34



 

                                                                           

Annex 2  

 
POST- CONSULTATION DRAFT 

 

 
 

PLANNING PERFORMANCE AGREEMENTS (PPA) CHARTER   
 
 INTRODUCTION 
 
1 This document (the “PPA Charter”) sets out the approach of City of York    

Council to Planning Performance Agreements (PPA). The Department 
for Communities and Local Government (CLG) consultation publication:  
‘Planning Performance Agreements: a new way to manage large-scale 
major planning applications’ (May 2007) defines a PPA as an ‘agreement 
between a local planning authority and an applicant to provide a project 
management framework for handing a major planning application’. It also 
follows further guidance published by the Advisory Team for Large 
Applications (ATLAS), which recommends that if PPAs are to be used 
regularly, a Local Planning Authority is encouraged to establish a formal 
process document (“Charter”) to set out their broad methodology for 
dealing with large complex development projects.   

 
2 The establishment of this PPA charter is consistent with the Council’s 

commitment to collaborate with developers/applicants to deliver major 
and complex developments that address Planning and Sustainable 
Development Service Plan objectives:  

 
•      To provide effective stewardship of the City's historic and natural 

environment alongside the complementary  objective of economic 
growth within the City. 

•     To influence development schemes, to ensure the highest quality of 
design and  appearance which enhances the unique character and 
future well being of York. 

 
3 The Planning Service also has strategic objectives to improve planning 

application performance without compromising the quality of 
development.  

 
 4       The objective of this Charter is to clarify the Council’s expectations of the 

PPA process, summarised as:  
 

Commitment: The commitment of City of York Council, statutory 
agencies and service providers to the PPA process and the approach 
and actions that developers/applicants are expected to commit; 

Page 35



 

                                                                           

Engagement: Expectations for community involvement and the method 
of engagement with Members;  
Resources: The expectations of the Local Planning Authority with regard 
to the delivery of the PPA process and support from the 
developer/applicant; 
Process: The key requirements of the statutory application process and 
the expected content of a PPA. 

 
PPA APPLICATIONS 
 
5 Inclusion within the PPA process will be determined by complexity of the 

project at both pre-application and application phase rather than its 
scale, albeit that the DCLG definition of a small scale major application 
forms the minimum threshold. Where a sufficiently complex major 
development proposal has the potential to accord to the provisions of the 
relevant Development Plan, or in the case of a Departure from the Plan, 
to meet any of the City Council’s broader regeneration or community 
objectives, the management of the application through the PPA process 
will be promoted. 

 
6 Any planning application for which a PPA is in place at the pre-

application stage will be exempted from the Best Value performance 
indicator N157a (formerly 109a) (13-weeks determination period) if the 
agreed PPA timescale is subsequently met, to allow applicants and the 
Local Authority to negotiate a flexible timescale that reflects the 
complexity and requirements of the individual application.   

 
7     CYC anticipates promoting a PPA for strategic and very complex projects 

and other significant proposals which have one or more complex 
planning issues that need careful and well planned consideration with the 
assistance of a statutory consultee.  

 
COMMITMENT TO THE PPA PROCESS  
 
City of York Council  
 

   8 An initial approach regarding any large-scale development project should 
be directed towards City Strategy officers in either  Development Control 
or City Development (Major Projects Team). As the project evolves 
towards the PPA process, a Project Team will be created involving 
relevant officers from other Council departments to ensure a unified and 
consistent approach.   

 
9 The Development Control Area Team Leader will oversee those 

development proposals that have a PPA, unless undertaking the role of 
the Council’s Lead Officer in the Project Team. The Project Team will 
report to the Area Team Leader directly. The Assistant Director (Planning 
And Sustainable Development) or Head of Development Control will 
oversee those developments where the Area Team Leader is the 
Council’s Lead Officer. For most development proposals with PPAs a DC 
Officer or Asssistant Team Leader will be the Council’s Lead Officer. 

 

Page 36



 

                                                                           

10 The responsibilities of the Overseeing Officer are to advise or direct the 
Project Team on the:- 

• links with other relevant corporate initiatives of the Council 
• direction of the project to meet corporate objectives; 
• most appropriate form of consultation including with members; 
• timescales to be achieved 

 
11 The responsibilities of the Council’s Lead Officer include:- 

• coordination of the project team 
• primary contact with the developers’ project team 
• delivery of tasks to timetable 
• liaison with stakeholders including public consultation 
• regularly reporting back to Overseeing Officer 

 
12 As part of the Council’s commitment :- 

• All Council officers will work on behalf of CYC in the wider public 
interest to secure the optimum scheme that delivers the Council’s 
planning and regeneration objectives and accords with relevant 
planning policy, including relevant supplementary planning documents.   

• Officers will express their own professional opinions that will form 
guidance for the applicant.  This guidance will not, however, bind 
officers to a final recommendation nor override the requirements for a 
formal planning application to be determined without prejudice and 
within the statutory requirements of current planning legislation.  

• The Council will use best endeavours to meet the agreed programme, 
and will repond to requests for information, advice and meetings in a 
timely way.   

• Officers will facilitate the presentation of proposals to Members at 
appropriate stages, where required within a PPA. 

• Officers will idenitfy issues and information that need to be addressed, 
as well as any likely Legal Agreement obligations, at an early stage of 
pre application discussions.   

• Officers will facilitate discussion and negotiation with external 
consultees involved in the PPA. 

 
Service Providers and Statutory Agencies  
 
13 For the larger complex applications, it is anticipated that other 

stakeholders from partner statutory agencies are likely to be required to 
provide pre-application advice in a timely and proactive manner. The 
most relevant Statutory Agencies in respect of applications in York are 
the Environment Agency, English Heritage and Natural England, who 
have all committed in principle to pre-application involvement as part of 
the PPA process. 

 
Applicant  
 
14 The developer/applicant will be expected to:- 

• Approach any project in a direct, collaborative and creative manner and 
to work co-operatively with the Council in the sharing of information.  

Page 37



 

                                                                           

• Provide Sufficient detail and information for consultees to properly 
assess a proposal and provide substantive responses at pre-
application and application stage.   

• Allow adequate time for  the assessment of proposals by the Council 
and consultees involved  

• Appoint the appropriate professional consultants with sufficient 
experience to reflect the complexity of the project.   

• Use best endeavours to meet the agreed programme. 
• Agree to contribute to and participate in public consultation, 

undertaking pre application consultation with local communities and 
stakeholders in accordance with the Council’s Statement of Community 
involvement.   

• Respond within the agreed timescales to requests for further 
information and/or revisions  

• Recognise that new/additional issues may arise from the consultation 
or negotiation processes which may affect previously agreed 
timescales    

 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
 
15 As set out in the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI), CYC is 

committed to engaging with the people and organisations of York in 
planning for sustainable development in an open and constructive 
manner. Appropriate methods of pre-application consultation therefore 
play a significant role in understanding the views of residents and 
organisations at an early stage. The SCI can be viewed at 
www.york.gov.uk following the links ‘Planning’ and then ‘Local 
Development Framework’. 

 
  16     The applicant will be obliged to ensure that all pre-application community 

consultation is meaningful and not seen as a public relations exercise to 
win support for a pre-determined proposal. Additionally, the responsibility 
for carrying out pre-application consultation (and the costs of doing so) 
will rest with the applicant.   

 
MEMBER INVOLVEMENT 
 
17   CYC will ensure that its Members are openly engaged in the PPA 

process. This will be through means considered most appropriate by the 
Overseeing Officer depending on the complexity and strategic impacts of 
the proposal. This could involve briefing; 

• The Executive  
• Ward Members 
• Planning Committee Chairs and Vice-Chairs  
• Planning Committee  

 
   18 The purpose of the briefing will be to allow Members to gain a full 

understanding of the project and other pertinent issues.  Members will 
not express views about the planning merits of the project nor will they 
engage privately with the applicant.  

 

Page 38



 

                                                                           

19 The role of Members in such briefings is principally to facilitate 
community involvement in the planning process.  There will be no conflict 
between this role and the proper conduct of Members who are involved 
in determining applications as Members of a Planning Committee and 
they will be expected to adhere to the Code of Conduct for Members on 
planning matters and must not predetermine their view on an application.  
Members attending briefings who are not on the Planning Committee are 
free to express a view on the scheme if they so wish.  

 
FEES 
 
20   At the present time, City of York does not intend to charge a fee for the 

PPA process unless circumstances change or exceptional service is 
required. 

 
PPA PROCESS EXPECTATIONS 
 

   21 CYC  will expect any applicant engaged in the PPA process to sign a 
Planning Performance Agreement to which the Council will also commit.  
It is envisaged that the process will comprise three key phases:  

 
Screening and Scoping 
 

• Early pre-application review of the project and agreement to engage in 
the PPA process. 

• Agreement on whether an Inception Day is to be held and if so whether 
a facilitator is to be appointed and paid for by the developer and when it 
should be held. 

• Nomination of the Council’s and Applicant’s Project Team Leaders and 
other’s responsibilities. 

 
Inception Phase 
 
22 This phase (which may include an Inception Day) is designed to 

achieve– 
 

• Agreement of a shared vision and development objectives as far 
as possible; 

• Review of policies and identification of key technical issues 
including identification of differences and how these might be 
resolved; 

• Agreement of community involvement including member 
engagement and involvement of statutory agencies; 

• Development of a project plan to identify key tasks and 
responsibilities of project team 

• Development of work programme with target dates and 
milestones including project review. 

 
23 The phase is concluded with the signing of the PPA by the Council, 

applicant and any critical consultees.  
 

Page 39



 

                                                                           

Implementation Phase 
 
24 This phase includes the delivery of the work required by the work 

programme, regular review of the PPA project plan and includes the final 
review of the process. 

 
The Form of Planning Performance Agreements 
 
25 The Council, applicant and any critical consultees engaged in the PPA 

process will collaboratively set out and reach agreement on the following 
key headlines – 

 
• Project lead for both the Council and applicant 
• Vision and Objectives 
• Project Structure 
• Consultation Strategy 
• Project Issues and Task List 
• Project Programme 
• Decision Making Framework 

 
26 The Council will publish a template to clarify the expected format of any 

PPA although the precise format will depend on the complexity and 
nature of each individual project. 

 
Further Information 
 
27 For further information on the PPA process please contact the 

Development Control or City Development teams team by - 
 

• Phone –  (01904) 551553  
• E mail –  planning.enquiries@york.gov.uk 

Page 40



 

 

  

 

   

 

East Area Planning Sub Committee 

West and City Centre Area Planning Sub 
Committee 

Planning Committee 

10th December 2009 

14th December 2009 

17th December 2009 

Appeals Performance and Decision Summaries  

 

Summary 

1 This report (presented to both Sub Committees and Main Planning 
Committee) informs Members of the Council’s performance in relation to 
appeals determined by the Planning Inspectorate in the 3 month period up 
to 31st October 2009, and provides a summary of the salient points from 
appeals determined in that period.  

Background  

2 Appeal statistics are collated by the Planning Inspectorate on a quarterly 
basis. Whilst the percentage of appeals allowed against the Council’s 
decision  is no longer a Best Value Performance Indicator, it has been  used 
to abate the amount of Housing and Planning Delivery Grant (HPDG) 
received by an Authority performing  badly against the average appeals 
performance.  To date, there has been no abatement of this Counci’s level 
of HPDG as a result of appeals performance, as performance has been 
close to the national average for a number of years.   

3   Whilst the Inspectorate breaks down the appeals by type in reporting 
performance, the table below  includes all types of  appeals such as those  
against refusal of planing permission, against conditions of approval, 
enforcement notices, listed building applications and lawful development 
certificates. Figure 1 gives a breakdown of appeals decided by the 
Inspectorate, both by CYC area and decision type for the 3 months and also 
the combined  area  (CYC )12 month performance.  

           
      
 
 

Agenda Item 6Page 41



 

  Fig 1 : Appeals Decided by the Planning Inspectorate 
        For 3 months to 31st October 2009 
 

 East  
3 months  

West & CC 
3 months  

  CYC 
3 months  

 CYC  
12 months 

Allowed   1   0     1     15 
% Allowed   12.5%   0%      9.09%      26.32% 
Part Allowed   1   0      1     4 
% Part Allowed   12.5%    0%      9.09%         7.02%    
Dismissed    6   3     6     38 
% Dismissed   75% 100%     81.81%     66.67% 
Total Determined     8   3      11      57 

Withdrawn     0   0      0      4 
 

Analysis 

4 The table shows that for the 3 months to 31st October 2009, a total of 11 
appeals  relating to CYC decsions were determined by the Inspectorate. Of 
those,  one was allowed and one part-allowed. At  just over 9%, the rate of 
appeals allowed is well below the national average of around 33% and a 
significant improvement over  perfromance in the preceeding 3 month period  
(27.27% allowed). 

5 For the 12 months up to 31st October 2009, CYC performance was 26.32% 
allowed, an improvement over the previously reported 12 month period of 
33.33%.  

6     The summaries of appeals determined in the last 3 months to 31st October 
2009  are included at Annex A. Details as to whether the application was 
dealt with under delegated powers or Committee (and in those cases the 
original officer recommendation) are included with each summary. In the  
period covered only two of the appeals determined related to applications  
considered by Committee, namely 08/02441/TCNOT - telecoms mast Oak 
Tree Lane Haxby,  and 08/00525/OUTM – Laverack Joinery, Birch Park. 

     Consultation  

7   This is essentially an information report for Members and therefore no 
consultation has taken place regarding its content.  

 Corporate Objectives  

8 The report is relevant to the furthering of the Council’s objectives of making 
York a sustainable City, maintaining its special qualities, making it a safer 
city, and providing an effective organisation with high standards.  

  Implications 

9 Financial – There are no financial implications directly arising from the report 

Page 42



 

  10     Human Resources – There are no Human Resources implications directly 
involved within this report and the recommendations within it other than the 
need to allocate officer time towards the provision of the information  

11 Legal – There are no known legal implications associated with this report or 
the recommendations within it. 

12 There are no known Equalities, Property, Crime & Disorder or other 
implications associated with the recommendations within this report. 

  Risk Management 

13 In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, there are no    
known risks associated with the recommendations of this report. 

  Recommendation   

14 That Members note the content of this report.  

Reason: So that Members can continue to be updated on appeal decisions within 
the CYC area and informed of the planning issues surrounding each case for future 
reference in determining planning applications. 

 

Contact Details 
 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

Jonathan Carr, 
Head of Development Control 
Directorate of City Strategy 
 
01904 551303 

Mike Slater 
Assistant Director Planning & Sustainable 
Development, Directorate of City Strategy 
 
Report Approved ü Date 25th November 2009 

    

Specialist Implications Officer(s) None. 
Wards Affected:  All ü 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 

 

Background Papers: None 

Annexes: Annex A – Appeal Case Summaries  

 

 

 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



���������		�
����
�
�����������
	������������������������������������� ����������

�����������	

�
������� 
���
���
�����������������������
�����������������������
��
����� �
�

����� ��������!"����	�
�!#�$�%!&���!&'(���)*!

"��+�,�+ ���-���

���������������� ./	

0���� ��������������-�������������
��������������
����������������
���
���������
�
����1��0���������
���
����� �
��
������2����������������3����������������� ������
�� ��������������
��1��4
�����5��������������

�
����� �����
������������
������
������������������1��6������
���������������

�
����� �����
��
���������
���
������������������
��������
������
��� �
���������
����������������
��������
������
���-���������������
��-������������������
�������������
1��6����
��������
���
������7�2�3�6���������
���-�����
������������������� �
���
���������
������
�����������%�-����������������
�
8��������������������5�����
�������������
�������������������
����
��-����
���
�������������������������
�����������%�
�����
��%�������� � ����
��%��
���� 9��2�3�6���������
�����������������

�������
��������
�������
���������������
����������������
���-������ �����������������
���������������������1��#��������
��������
�������������� �������� ������
������� �
�������������
�-�������
��1�:������%�-������
�%�����-��� ����� ������
���� ������������ �
�5�-���������������������
���%�
�����������������������
�5�
�
��
%�����5�-�����
���������������������� ��������
���1��6����
����������
�������
�������������� �����%������������
������
���� ��
��������%�������������� ���
����
��������-�������������� ���������%������������ �
�1��6����������-���
��� �����1

 ����	�� .4+"4+

������������!��
�������"#�

Page 45



�;�������'�6"

�
������� /������
����<���-����
����������� ������
�����$����
��������%

����� 	��������=��
��%!�
���<!:�����
>���!#�
��
���
!&���!&'(<�?:	!


������	�������

���������������� @"A

6������
�������
���������
�����

�
����� �����
5����B���������
�����
�5���������
�������
����<���-����
��1��6����������-�������
���
�
�������������
�����
�1��6���
�
�������C����
��
���������������-�7�@�
�����
���2.�����������������%�����31��6���
������
������������
�����
������������
�������-����
�@�
�����
�<�1���@�
�����
���
2+�� ���������
������%������� �
���������-��� ����
���-����@�+#�	�����(3�-���
����-������B����������������-����
�1���@�
�����
�D�2"�
� � ����<�E�����
���%���� �
�
8�������
�-������������3�-��������-��1�������@�
�����
�;�20�
����������%����������
�������������
���
%����
���
�������
� ���������
��������������������������������
31��
*�������
���������������������� ���
������
�%��������������
���������
��������������
�
��� ��
��$����
������
���5���
����������%��
���������%�
����� ��������
����

�������%1�6�����
�����
�-�������-������B����������������-����
�1���@�
�����
�<��
2,��������� �
���
��������������������������%������������
���������31��6���
�������
������������������ �
�������%�������
�����
�-��������
�����1��.���
������
�����
�� �����
������-����
��-�����������
���������
�����
�-����������
�������
��%1�@�
�����
�<(�2"����������������
�� ��5���������
����
��������
3��
-����������1���@�
�����
�<��2F(<5������������������
������3������������B�������
���%� �
�����-����
�1���@�
�����
�<D�2F(�5������������
3�-�������������������
�-������
���%����������
�������B���
������� �
�5��
��
��� ��������������� �����
���������������
�#�
��
���
�+�����5������������������������
������
�������
��� ��%��������������������������1��@�
�����
�<��2+��������%�.����
3�-���
����-������B�����������������
�����
������������
�����������������%�����1�+���
@�
�����
��1

 ����	�� >0.

������������!��
�������"#�

Page 46



�;���������	

�
������� 0��������
���
���$��
���
������$����
���-����
���
���������
�
���������������������������

����� 6���'���G��������!*���������
	�
�!/���
���
!&���!&'�<��0H!

"��0
��"���G���
�%

���������������� ./	

6���-����� ��
�%��� �������
��$��
���
������ ��������������������������������
�
�����������
������  ������
��
����
�-����������������
���

�����
�-��������
��B���
��������
������:I:1��6������
���������������

�
����� �����
��
�����
����
������2�3��
������������������� �
���
�����G���
�:�����������
������������
�����������
��������������
����-����
�9��
��2�3��� ��������� ������
�
�������

�����������G���
�:���1��6��������������-����
����
����
��%������
�����
����
�����1��6������ ����� ��
�%��� �����������
����������������  ������
�
�
���������
���������
�����5����������������%������������
��1���6�������
��������
����
������������
����
�����
����������������2-������������
���
��������%�
�
����������������%�����������������������������
���
��:I:�����  ������
31��
6��������������������������� �����������������
�����1��*����
���������
��������
 ������������������
��-����������������
�����
���������������������
������-����
��
-����������

�
����� �����
1��4����������
��%����� �������������1��6�����������
������
�������������
���-�
��������$��
���
����������������1��6����
��������
���
����������������������J����������$��
�����-����
��-�������������� ����������
�������
������������ ��
�������������������
�����������
������������%�� ����
�$����
��������
�1�4��-��������������
������������������� �
���
�����G���
�:���1��
/$����
�������
�
����� � ������
��������
���-�����
��������
��������������
���

���1��/
�����
������������
���������-�����������
�����
���
����������
�����
����5���� �
���������������1��*��������������������� ���������� ���������
���������
����
����������-������
����������

������������ �����-�����
���������
��� ������������ �
�1��6����$����
���-����
���������
�����������%������������
���
������ ��%����5�����
��-���������������� ���
���������
������
�����
��%����
���5�
������������������������
������
�������������$��
���
1��6����
����������
������������
��������� �����%������������
������
���� ��
��������%�������������� ���
���������
���-�������������� ���������%������������ �
�1

 ����	�� .4+"4+

������������!��
�������"#�

Page 47



�;���(D<���	

�
������� /������
������������� �
���-����
�

����� ,�-��
��!:����	�
��+����!*��������!&���!&'<?�D.6!

"��+� �
�@��-����

���������������� ./	

>��

�
����� �����
�-������������%�����@��
����������������� �
���-����
�1�6���
�$����
�������������� ���5��� ��������5���
���������%��-����
��-���������������
 �������������������  ������
������1�6���������� �
���-����
��-��������$1�D�
 ���
���5��� ��������������
���1�� �����������
��$����
�1�6�������������
�-���
���������
���������
������������ ��
��������
������������������� �
���
�����
G���
�:������������������ �
��-��� ��������������
������
�����-����������
�1�4��
-����������� ��������� ��������

�����������G���
�:���1�0��������������
�����
��������-����
�������
������
������
������
�����
��� ����
�-������ ������-����
��������������
1�6���4
���������������-��������@��
��������������C�����������������
��
���
������
�����-������������C�-����
������������������� �
���
�����������5��%�
����
���
5���� �����������G���
�:���1�#���������
�����������������������������
��
-����������C���������������������������G���
�:���C1�#����
������������
����
�%��
�
���������������J�5�����������
������
�����
��1�6����$����
��������������� ����
������
��-����C��������������������������������%�-����
����������������
�C1�6���
������� �
��-�����������5���������������
����-�-���������4
����������
�������
-�����������
�C����
���
����������
���������C�-�����-�������� ���������������
�������5������������%�����
����������������������
�������1�6����������5������
������5�
����������� ����������

�����������G���
�:���1��'
������������
����������
�5�
����
�������-����
��$����
���������
���������5�����4
����������
����������������
�������
�����������
�����
����-��������%������� �
� ����
��
�������
����������
�
���-�������%�����@��
��������������$����
��������������������
%�����
����
������ ���
���������1�6�������������
�����
������������
���%����� ���������������
��������-�����-������������������5����
���������������������������-��������
������1����0������������������� �������
�������� ��������G���
�:�����
�%1

 ����	�� .4+"4+

������������!��
�������"#�

Page 48



�;�����<�6@,'6

�
������� >���������
���������
����<�1�� �����������
������  �
������
�� ����-�������������������� �
�

����� >��������6�����  �
������
��>�������
��
��(?!'���6����
	�
�!#�$�%!&���!!

A������
���	� ����

���������������� @'""

6����������-�������
������������5��%�����@��
���5�������
�����������������
6�����  �
������
�� �����
������������������ �
�1�4���������5��
�����
��
�
��

�5�-���<�1�� �������
��-����������
���������������
��
�����-�������%�
����������������-�����������������
����������%�������������� �
�
��%�������
������
�
���������1�'������������  �
������������������������
�������� � �����
�������
�������������  �������
���������
���������%���������������������
����
��
�����������������
�����
��
��������������� �
��-�������� ������������������������
���������
�1���6���4
���������������-������������-���%�
����������� ����-��������
��
��������%�����������
���B���
���� �������
�������
���%��������1�6����-��� ����
-������%����������
��
�������������������������������
������
����������������
�
��
��������������� ������������ ���5����>>G;�����������1�4��-��������������������
��� �
�
����������-����
���������������
��-�����-��������B�������
�����
��%�������
������������
�������B���
��������
����
���� �
����������%��
�1�4��-�������������
����������� �������
��
���-����
����
�������
�5�-�����������-�������������
4
�������C����
���
�1��6���4
���������������
������������������������
������
���
������%��� �
��������-�%���������������%���� ���������������
���������������-����
�
���������������1������$� ���5������������
����B�������
��
���������
�������
������
����������������
����%�����������������������C���
�����
�������������-����C���������

���������%�-����������-������
������1�4��-��������
������������
� �������
����%�
��������������
�����
�������
����%�����
������
����
���
�������5��������
��
��B�����1���'�������
���
���$���������%�������
�������������������
����������
����� �
������
��5���������
�����������
����������-�%�-�����-����
�����
��������
�����
��������� ����
������������1�6��������5����������� �������
�����
����������
�
��������� ������������������� �
���
�����������
����������������������
���������
�1

 ����	�� .4+"4+

������������!��
�������"#�

Page 49



�;����;����	

�
������� :�
����-��������������
����<��:����
�0��
���-�����������
��� ���������@�� ���+�����

����� <��:����
�0��
��!&���!&'(��D./!

"��*����

���������������� ./	

0���
����-������������������������-�������%��� ������������-����
��2<��:����
�
0��
��3���������%���������������������������������������������@�� ���+�����1���
6-�� ��
��������-������������
������������
���������
������������
���
�����
��
��
�����
�����
���������
���-����
����+�������������������
�:����
�0��
��������
�����������������������������������@�� ���+�������
��������������������-�%�����
@�� ���+������-�����
���������������
������������������-����������
�����
������
�������%���������������1��6���4
����������
�����������������
���������%�
�-����
�5�-�����-�������� �������
���J�5�-�����
��������� ������������������������
�������
����������������
��
������1��6��������-�%�-�������
����
�����������
�����
�������B���
��������������-�%���� ��$����
���-����
��1��6���� ��
�����
����������
��������%����
�������� ���
����-�-�������� �
� ����
�������
���
���������� ����
������
����������
�����������-����������� ���������������
��
��
�����
�������B���
���-����
��1��<��:����
�0��
���-����������
����������J���
����������
5��������������������
����-�-���������
�%��������%�����������
�����
 �������������
���%���
��1��6������������������������-�%���� ��������
���%�
-�������������%��� ������������� ����1���6�������������������%�-����������������%�
������
��5���-���������4
����������
��������������������������-��������������
�
�
�������������
��������������
�����������
��� ������
����������������
��1

 ����	�� 0		'*

������������!��
�������"#�

Page 50



�;����(����	

�
������� /������
���������������� �
���������� ������
����������

����� <D��:����
�+��
��	�
�!&���!&'(��D.�!

>����@�����

���������������� ./	

0���������
�-������������� ������
�����
��$����
����������
���������
������<�
������ ������������� �
���
����������1�4��-������������
���������
���������%�
����������������J�5������5������
��
���������
5����-�������� ����������������
��
�������
��������������1��@�
�������������-����
��-�������������������
����
���
���������-�����-�������������
��
����������������������
���������������-�����
-������������������������
��-��������������
��
������1��0���������5��������
���� ���������
����������
����B�������
�������1!!4
���������������-��������
@��
���1�#����
���������������
������� ���������� ��-���������-���������������
����������
�����-������������5�-���������
�����
��%���������-����1�@�
�����
��%5�����
���

����������������-���������������5���� �
���������������1�6����������
�������
���������������
��-������������� ���������
���������������������������������
4
�����������������������
������ ������� ���������������
�����������
��������
��
����������������1�#��
���������������������������(�-�
��-���
��������������
��
��
����������
������������������
���������������������
����
���
�
���
������������1�6���
4
����������
�����������������-����������������
�C�����%C�������
�����
�����������
�-����
��5�
������������������
��1�6����-��������������CB����
�C�
�����
������������
���
�5���� �
�����������������
���������
��1

 ����	�� .4+"4+

������������!��
�������"#�

Page 51



�?�����<���	

�
������� A�������
������
�����
���������

�
����� �����
�
?����(�;���	�2���
�����
�������3�����$��
�����
�
��������
����$����
��������-�%����<<��8�<���"�
86����5�<<���8������
���8+����
��+�
����<<���8������2 ��
����3�2�$����
��
��� ������������<<1��8�����"�
8+����
��<<��8�((��+�
3

����� �<�:����� �+�����!&���!&'���<0H!

0������K���

���������������� ./	

6�������������
�-�������  �
�����������������
���������
���������$��
����
������-�������� �����������
������ �
��%��������������
��
������������������� �
�
��������
������
����������
��1�6����������
��-�
������������$��
���������������
<<1���8��<1���"�
��%����6������%5�<<1���8���1��������%����+������%��
��<<1������
��1����
���+�
��%�2�����$����
����� ����������������<<1���8���1���"�
��%����
+������%��
��<<1���8��(1(���
���+�
��%31��0��������������������
��������
�
�����������������$��
���
��������������2�D���D;?3����+�
86������
���?���8��<���
���8+���<<1���8���1���"�
��%����+������%�6����
���������������-�����������
���5�
�����-���������������-�%�-����
������%����
�������������
���&�����
�������
��������
����  ��������������������������-�������� ������������������ ��
�����
�
�����������������$��
�����������
������
������
����������
�����������%�
�����
��������������-�������� ���������
����
�����
��������������
�������
��
����%1�
6���4
�������������
������������������
����%������-�%������
������
���%�
��
 ��
����1�6���4
������������
�����
�������������������������� ���
� �������
����
�������
�������������������
����������-�����������
��������-��������

�
��
��B�����
�1

 ����	�� .4+"4+

������������!��
�������"#�

�?���((<���	

�
������� .���������-����
���
���������������������������%�
2����� �����
3

����� /� �����!"����
�
���!#�-����!&���!&'(<�?	6!

"���@����%

��@������

���������������� ./	

0���������
�-�������������������-����
���
���������������
�������������������
�������/� �����1�>��

�
����� �����
�-������������
���������
��������������������
����������������������������-����
���-�������������
��
��
�������������������
� �
��%����������������������/� �����1�6���4
����������
����������������
������� �
���������
����C��
�� �������� �
�C1�#���������-��������@��
���������
������
�����
�����$� ��%����������������������
�-��-����
��-�������������
�
�����
�
����������
����
������������������%���������������������/� ��������� ��� �
���
�
�����
���������������������
���������%�������������1�6����������
������������ ��
�%���
�����
���������
��������8����
������$����
��������������
��-�
��-�1�0������
��� �����1

 ����	�� .4+"4+

������������!��
�������"#�

Page 52



�?����<����	

�
������� 
���
���
�����>A@�-�
��-���
���������� ������������<8�5�
<��+��"��%�

����� �����<!<��+��"��%�!&���!&'(���..!

"��6���%�*������%

���������������� ./	

'�����������  �
�����
�����������1��6������������������������������
���
���������
������� ����
������������J���-�
��-������������
���
���������������
������� ���
����������������%5�-������������
��������
����������1��6����������%������������-����
�
����@�
�����#��������@����@�
��������
�0�����������
���������1�6�������������
�-���
����������%������
���������������
����
����������������
����������� ������ �
��
�����������������������������
���������
������<��+�1�"��%���
���������������
�1�
6���4
��������
�������������� �
�
�������� ���������
�������-�
��-���
��
��  �
������������� �������
����+�1�"��%��������������-��������������
��������
����
��
�����
�1��6���4
����������  �
������������-�
��-���
���������
�,�1<��+�1�
"��%�5������������������ ��������5����
�
�� ����
�� ��
�������
5�������������
�������
����
���������������������
��������������
���� �
�������������������������
��
��������
�����1��*����������
�����������������������
5�������
�������������������
�>A@�-�
��-������ ������  �
���������
�����������
�5����%��� �����%���������
��� �������
��������
�����1

 ����	�� .4+"4+

������������!��
�������"#�

�?����<����	

�
������� .�� ���������
�

����� <(�����-����!&���!&'����
&!

"��@�������K� �

���������������� ./	

6���������-����
�������� ���� ����
��� �8�����������
����-1��0�������$��
���
�
-�������
����� �������������%����
���������2����
�����
�����  �
��������
�������������������
��������  �����31��6������� �����
�-��������
�������������
��� ���-����
����������
�������5��
��-������������������������������-�������� �����
�������
�����������-����
��-����
�����������
��
������1��.������
����%�������
�-����
��5��
���
���-�8�����%5������
����������
���������
��������5������
�%�<�� ����
���
����� ��������
��%��
������5��� �������
������ ���������1��4
���������������
����������������
�� ���5�-�������������
��
�������-����
��������������
���
��
��� ������������
�����������-����
�

 ����	�� .4+"4+

������������!��
�������"#�

.������
�	����7

./	�L�.���������.������

@'""�L�+��8@�  ������.�����

@'">�L�"��
�@�  ������.������


'���� �7
0		'*�L�0������0���-��
.4+"4+�L�0������.�� �����
>0.�L�0�������������� ���������������-��

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	4a Land to the West of Metcalfe Lane, Osbaldwick, York (09/01768/FULM)
	09 01768 FULM

	4b MFI Furniture Centre Ltd, Foss Islands Road, York YO31 7UL (09/02071/LEGAL)
	09 02071 LEGAL

	5 Planning Performance Agreements - Charter
	Annex 1 PPA Consultee replies
	PPA Charter Post-Consultation Draft Annex 2

	6 Appeals Performance and Decisions Summary
	Appeal Summaries between 01.08.09 and 31.10.09


